
 

 

 

 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
2.00 PM - TUESDAY, 21 NOVEMBER 2017 

 
*COUNCIL CHAMBER - PORT TALBOT CIVIC CENTRE 

 
*PLEASE NOTE VENUE 

 

 
 
 PART 1 

 
1.  To receive any declarations of interest from Members.   

 
2.  To receive the Minutes of the previous meeting held on 31 October, 

2017  (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

3.  To Request Site Visit(s) from the Applications Presented   
 

 Report of the Head of Planning 
 

 Section A - Matters for Decision 
 

 Planning Application Recommended for Approval 
 
4.  Application No: P2017/0516  (Pages 7 - 36) 

Erection of Food Store (Use Class A1 - Retail) together with 
parking, servicing, access, landscaping and associated works, at 
land at, Christchurch Road, Baglan Bay, SA12 7BZ.  
 

 Section B - Matters for Information 
 

5.  Delegated Applications Determined between 24 October and 13 
November, 2017  (Pages 37 - 48) 
 

6.  Appeals Received  (Pages 49 - 50) 
 

AGENDA 



7.  Any urgent items at the discretion of the Chairman pursuant to 
Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972.   
 

 
 
 

S.Phillips 
Chief Executive 

 
 
 

Civic Centre 
Port Talbot Wednesday, 15 November, 2017 
 
 
 
Committee Membership:  
 
Chairperson: Councillor S.Paddison 

 
Vice 
Chairperson: 
 

Councillor H.N.James 
 

Members: 
 

Councillors A.R.Aubrey, S.Bamsey, R.Davies, 
W.F.Griffiths, S.K.Hunt, C.J.Jones, R.Thomas, 
S.Pursey, A.McGrath and C.Galsworthy 
 

Cabinet 
UDP/LDP 
Member: 

Councillor A.Wingrave 

 
 
 
 
Requesting to Speak at Planning Committee 
 
The public have a right to attend the meeting and address the Committee 
in accordance with the Council’s approved procedure  which is available 
at www.npt.gov.uk/planning. 
 
If you would like to speak at Planning Committee on an application 
reported to this Committee you must: 
 

http://www.npt.gov.uk/pdf/procedure_note_for_new_%20planning_cttee_arrangments_final_version.pdf
http://www.npt.gov.uk/planning


 Contact Democratic Services in writing at : Civic Centre, Port Talbot 
SA13 1PJ, preferably by email: democratic.services@npt.gov.uk.  

 Ensure your request to speak is made no later than two working 
days prior to the meeting date (by 2 pm on the preceding Friday 
based on a usual Tuesday meeting),  

 Clearly indicate the item number or application number on which 
you wish to speak and confirm whether you are supporting or 
objecting to the application. 

 Give your name and address (which will be publicly available unless 
there are particular reasons for confidentiality) 

 
Please note that only one person is able to speak for each ‘category’ 
(objector; supporter; applicant/agent; Town/Community Council for each 
application.  Full details are available in the Council’s approved 
procedure. 
 
In addition, if an objector registers to speak, the Applicant/Agent will be 
notified by the Council. 
 
Should you wish to discuss any aspect of public speaking, please contact 
the Democratic Services Team on 01639 763713. 

Commenting on planning applications which are to be reported to 
Committee 

Should you wish to submit representations on an application presented to 
this Planning Committee, please note that these must be received by the 
Planning department no later than 2.00p.m. on the Friday before 
Committee (based on the usual Tuesday meeting).  If the meeting is not 
on a Tuesday, these should be received no later than 2.00pm on the 
penultimate working day immediately preceding the Planning Committee.  

Please note that representations received in accordance with the 
Council’s protocol are summarised and, where necessary, commented 
upon in the form of an Amendment Sheet, which is circulated to Members 
of the Planning Committee by email on the evening before Committee, 
and re-distributed prior to the commencement of the meeting. 

 
 
 

mailto:democratic.services@npt.gov.uk
http://www.npt.gov.uk/pdf/procedure_note_for_new_%20planning_cttee_arrangments_final_version.pdf
http://www.npt.gov.uk/pdf/procedure_note_for_new_%20planning_cttee_arrangments_final_version.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



- 21 - 
 

311017 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Members Present:  31 October, 2017 
 
 
Chairperson: 
 

Councillor S.Paddison 
 

Vice Chairperson: 
 

Councillor H.N.James 
 

Councillors: 
 

A.R.Aubrey, S.Bamsey, R.Davies, W.F.Griffiths, 
C.J.Jones, R.Thomas, S.Pursey and A.McGrath 
 

Local Member: Councillor E.V.Latham 
 

Officers In 
Attendance: 
 

S.Ball, I.Davies, C.Morris, C.Thomas and 
T.Davies 
 

 

 
1. MEMBER'S DECLARATION  

 
The following Member made a declaration at the commencement of 
the meeting:- 
 
Councillor 
S.Bamsey 

Application No. P2017/0921 – Proposed 
Detached garage with dormer at 66 Victoria 
Road, Sandfields, Port Talbot, SA12 6AD, 
as the Applicant is a friend of his. 
 
 

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 10 OCTOBER, 
2017  
 

RESOLVED That the Minutes of the Planning Committee 
held on the 10 October 2017, as circulated, be 
confirmed as a true record. 
 
 

3. SITE VISITS  
 
RESOLVED: That no site visits be held on the application 

before Committee today. 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



- 22 - 
 

311017 

4. APPLICATION NO: P2017/0921  
(At this point in the meeting, Councillor S.Bamsey reaffirmed his 
interest, and withdrew from the discussion and voting on this item) 
 
Officers made a presentation to the Planning Committee on this 
Application (proposed detached garage with dormer at 66 Victoria 
Road, Sandfields, Port Talbot, SA12 6AD) as detailed in the circulated 
report. Members received representations from the Local Ward 
Member in support of the application. 
 
RESOLVED: That in accordance with Officers’ 

recommendations, Application P2017/0921 be 
refused for the reasons detailed within the 
circulated report. 
 
 

5. DELEGATED APPLICATIONS DETERMINED BETWEEN 1 
OCTOBER AND 23 OCTOBER, 2017  
 
Members received a list of Planning Applications which had been 
determined between 1 October and 23 October 2017, as detailed 
within the circulated report. 
 
RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 

 
 

6. APPEALS RECEIVED  
 
RESOLVED: That the following Appeal received be noted as 

detailed in the circulated report. 
 
 Appeal Ref:  A2017/0011 
 
 Retention of use of part of car park for two 

pitches for the sale of meat and potatoes, at 
Resolven AFC, Neath Vale Supplier Park Access 
Road, Resolven, Neath 

 
 
 

CHAIRPERSON 

Page 6



SECTION A – MATTERS FOR DECISION 
 
Planning Applications Recommended For Approval 

 

APPLICATION NO: P2017/0516 DATE: 05/06/2017 
PROPOSAL: Erection of Food Store (Use Class A1 - Retail) together 

with parking, servicing, access, landscaping and 
associated works. 

LOCATION: Land At, Christchurch Road, Baglan Bay,  SA12 7BZ 
APPLICANT: Simon Anderson - Bejam Group Ltd 
TYPE: Full Plans 
WARD: Aberavon 

 
SITE AND CONTEXT 
 
The application site has an area of some 0.58 hectares and stands at the 
junction of Christchurch Road and Aberavon Road, being an ‘L’ shaped 
parcel of land with a maximum depth of 105 metres and maximum width 
of 85 metres. The site comprises rough ground, clear of any significant 
vegetation, and bounded to the north and east by existing highway. 
 
Surrounding the site are a number of commercial and retail uses, 
including a large Morrisons supermarket to the north, the Copper Penny 
Public House/ restaurant  to the west with several further retail units 
(including a Lidl store) beyond. The south of the site is partially bounded 
by vacant land and a row of industrial buildings and within settlement 
limits as defined by Policy SC1 of the adopted Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan. 
 
DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT 
 
The application seeks permission to construct a single storey food store 
(Class A1 Retail) together with service area, parking, landscaping and 
associated works. It is intended that the proposed retail unit will be 
occupied by Iceland’s ‘Food Warehouse’ format which sells chilled, frozen, 
fresh and pre-packaged grocery goods, along with alcoholic drinks.  
 
The site which is bounded on the north-west by Christchurch Road and on 
the south east by Aberavon Road is currently vacant. The building would 
have a frontage to Christchurch Road with site access from the service 
road off Christchurch Road, which serves the car park of the adjacent 
public house and vacant land.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 
The store is rectangular in shape and measures 58 metres in depth and 
23 metres in width with a footprint of 1347 square metres together with 80 
square metres of external amenity space. The net sales area of the unit 
will be 1,051 sq. m. 
 
The building is designed with a pitched roof behind a low parapet and will 
have a height of 8.2m. The customer entrance is located on the north 
west elevation and will have full width glazing returns one bay into the 
south west elevation. The main entrance elevation has a canopy 
projecting 1800mm from the building, which also returns one bay along 
the south- west elevation. This will be finished in the same colour as the 
shop front frames. A signage frame is positioned above the canopy, in the 
centre of the elevation, up to 300mm above parapet level.  
 
The remainder of the elevations are clad in flat metal cladding panels, laid 
horizontally. The top fascia panel, is white, and the lower panels are light 
grey, with contrasting vertical trims in dark grey (RAL 7015). 
 
The food store is orientated to provide car parking on its two main 
frontages, accessed from the existing service road. The proposal includes 
the provision of 83 car parking spaces. The goods loading/unloading bay 
is located to the (rear) south east elevation, accessed off Aberavon Road.  
 
All plans / documents submitted in respect of this application can be 
viewed on the Council’s online register.  
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
The application site has the following relevant planning history; - 
 

• P2007/1334 – Outline planning for the construction of two bulky 
goods retail units (Class A1) with associated car parking including 
access  and siting – Approved 19/2/2008 

 
• P2011/0104 – Vary condition 3 of planning permission application 

P2007/1334 to extend the time in which an application for reserved 
matters can be made - Approved 6/6/2011 (approved maximum 
floorspace 4131 sq.m.) 

 

Page 8

http://appsportal.npt.gov.uk/ords/idocs12/f?p=Planning:2:0::NO::P2_REFERENCE:P2017/0516


 
 Figure 1: Proposed Site Layout 
 

 
 Figure 2: Proposed Elevations 
 

Page 9



CONSULTATIONS  
 
Natural Resources Wales: No objection, subject to the imposition of a 
condition. 
 
Welsh Water: No reply, therefore no comments to make.  
 
Contaminated land: No objection subject to the imposition of conditions. 
 
Head of Engineering and Transport (Highways): No objection, subject 
to the imposition of conditions. 
 
Head of Engineering and Transport (Drainage): No objection, subject 
to the imposition of conditions.  
 
Biodiversity: No objection 
 
Pollution (Air): No objection  
 
Environmental Health: No objection 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
The neighbouring properties were consulted and site notice displayed on 
June 7th and July 26th 2017. The application was also advertised in the 
press on June 10th 2017. 
 
Two letters have been received from Cllr Nigel Thomas Hunt with the 
issues raised summarised as follows:  
 

• Constituents have not requested more retail development on The 
Moors; 

• Traffic congestion and the part closure of the Rutherglen roundabout 
due to the volume of traffic was a major concern and would be 
exacerbated by further retail development; 

• May impact on the town centre Iceland store; 
• Concerns over the impact out of town developments on town 

centres such as Llanelli and Bridgend ; 
• Status of discussions with the applicant regarding S106 

negotiations. 
• Confirmation of whether Iceland have pledged a 6 figure sum to the 

community.  
 

Page 10



REPORT 
 
Planning Policies  
 
National Guidance 
 
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 9 2016) 
 
Technical Advice Note (TAN) 4: Retail and Commercial Development 
(2016)  
Technical Advice Note (TAN) 12: Design (2016)  
 
Local Development Plan 
 
The adopted Development Plan comprises the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan which was adopted on 27th January 2016, and within 
which the following Policies are of relevance: - 
 
Strategic Policies 
 

• Policy SP5  Development in the Coastal Corridor Strategy Area 
• Policy SP12  Retail 
• Policy SP13  Tourism 
• Policy SP15 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 
• Policy SP16  Environmental Protection 
• Policy SP20 Transport Network 

 
Topic based Policies 
 

• Policy SC1 Settlement limits 
• Policy I1 Infrastructure Requirements 
• Policy OS1  Open Space Provision  
• Policy R3  Out of Centre Retail Proposals 
• Policy EN8  Pollution and Land Stability  
• Policy TR2  Design and Access of New Development  
• Policy BE1  Design  
• Policy RE2  Renewable and Low Carbon Energy in New 

Development 
 

Page 11

http://gov.wales/topics/planning/policy/ppw/?lang=en
http://gov.wales/docs/desh/policy/161118technical-advice-note-4-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/desh/policy/161118technical-advice-note-4-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/160504-technical-advice-note-12-en.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=45
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=65
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=68
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=72
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=74
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=83
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=38
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=39
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=60
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=67
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=74
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=84
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=87
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=80
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=80


Supplementary Planning Guidance: 
 
The following SPG is of relevance to this application: - 
 

• Planning Obligations (October 2016) 
• Parking Standards (October 2016) 
• Pollution (October 2016) 
• Open Space & Greenspace (July 2017) 
• Design (July 2017) 
• Renewable and Low Carbon Energy (July 2017) 
• Design (July 2017) 

 
Main Issues 
 
Within the above Policy context, the main issue to consider concerns 
whether the proposed new store represents an acceptable development 
having regard to land use and development plan policy, notably its impact 
upon the vitality, viability and attractiveness of existing retail centres.  
 
Other matters of note include impacts on visual amenity and the character 
of the area as a whole, ecology, design, land contamination, renewable 
energy, amenity of residents within adjoining properties and highway and 
pedestrian safety. 
 
Retail Assessment  
 
For the purposes of the adopted LDP, the application site lies within the 
defined settlement limits but is not allocated for retail land uses. The 
previous retail permission on the site expired in June 2016. 
 
The site is also located outside of any designated  retail centre and 
therefore Policy R3 of the Local Development Plan is of direct relevance, 
requiring that proposals for new retail development within settlement limits 
but outside of the defined retail centres or retail allocations will only be 
permitted where the following criteria are met: 
 

1. It is demonstrated that there is a need for the development; and 
 

2. The development cannot be accommodated in a defined retail 
centre and is located in line with the sequential approach; and 

 

Page 12

https://www.npt.gov.uk/pdf/spg_planning_obligations_oct16.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/spg_parking_standards_oct16.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/spg_pollution_oct16.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7239/spg_open_space_july17.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7237/spg_design_july17.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7241/spg_renewable_energy_july17.pdf
https://www.npt.gov.uk/media/7237/spg_design_july17.pdf


3. The vitality and viability of existing retail centres will not be 
undermined (taking into account the cumulative effects of other 
approved developments); and 

 
4. The proposal would not undermine the Council’s retail hierarchy or 

any regeneration schemes that the Council has formally approved. 
 
In addition, PPW 9 is also a material consideration in the determination of 
this application as Paragraph 10.4.1 requires local planning authorities to 
take into consideration the following issues for retail development 
proposals: 
 

• compatibility with the development plan;  
• quantitative and qualitative need for the development/ extension, 

unless the proposal is for a site within a defined centre or one 
allocated in an up to date development; 

• the sequential approach to site selection; 
• impact on existing town centres; 
• net gains in floor space where redevelopment is involved and 

whether or not it is like for like in terms of comparison and 
convenience;  

• rate of take up of allocations in any adopted development plan; 
• accessibility by a variety of modes of travel; 
• improvements to public transport; 
• impact on overall travel patterns; and  
• best use of land close to any transport hub, in terms of density and 

mixed use. 
 
An independent review of the submitted Retail Assessment, Addendum 
and further representations provided by the applicant has been 
commissioned by the Authority in order to assess the retail impacts of the 
proposal, including upon Port Talbot Town Centre. It should be noted that 
TAN 4 requires retail applications of 2,500 square metres or more gross 
floor space to be supported by a Retail Impact Assessment, and this 
proposal falls below the threshold. 
 
The report assesses the compliance of the proposal with reference to 
national and local retail planning policy including the tests of need, 
sequential and impact tests. In particular an assessment of need for the 
increase of retail floor space and the consequences upon the town centre 
in terms of vitality and viability together with an assessment of the 
proposal against national policy, including Planning Policy Wales 9 

Page 13



(2016), Technical Advice Note 4 (November 2016) and  the adopted Local 
Development Plan.  
 
Need (Policy R3 Criterion 1) 
 
Planning Policy Wales advises (para 10.2.9) that in deciding whether to 
identify sites for comparison, convenience or other forms of retail uses in 
development plans or approving planning applications for such uses, local 
planning authorities should in the first instance consider whether there is a 
need for additional retail provision.  It then further advises that where the 
current provision appears to be adequate in quantity, the need for further 
allocations or developments as a result of an identified qualitative need 
must be fully justified.  It is for the local planning authority to determine 
and justify the weight to be given to any qualitative assessment. 
 
With respect to need for the development, the submitted retail assessment 
has considered both quantitative and qualitative factors. As noted above, 
National Policy in PPW indicates that evidence of need should be taken 
into account and that the consideration of quantitative need should take 
precedence (although PPW does not make the demonstration of such 
need a pre-requisite to the grant of planning permission).  
 
The applicant has also provided a critique of the need test, largely 
reflecting on how the need test has been removed in England because it 
can, for example, in some instances be counterproductive such that it 
would stop an edge of centre store being provided due to the scale of out 
of centre floorspace. 
 
In this regard, the applicants argue that the ‘need’ test is based on an 
assessment of how much expenditure is available within an area, how 
much retail floor space exists and is consented within this area, what the 
turnover of this floor space would be if the respective stores traded at their 
national company average turnover level. The presented evidence 
identifies the available expenditure in 2017 is £85.3million with a 
benchmark turnover of £83.9 million which equates to an expenditure 
surplus of £1.4 million available to support new floorspace. This is 
insufficient to cover the convenience goods turnover of the proposal which 
is assessed to be £5.3m. This quantitative need falls away when the 
commitment at Burrows Yard is taken into account resulting in an 
expenditure deficit of £6.4 million.  The applicants have emphasised, 
however, that almost 50% of the total benchmark turnover is accounted 
for by out of centre stores (such as Morrisons, Lidl and the Co-op at 
Margam) which the applicant considers ‘are not policy protected’, with 

Page 14



such floorspace preventing new edge and out of centre retail floor space. 
Therefore, the applicant argues that the absence of quantitative need 
should not result in the refusal of planning permission as it would lead to 
an increased protection for out of centre stores by reducing competition.  
 
Our consultant notes their ‘critique’ which concentrates heavily on the 
alleged protection it offers to out of centre retail stores, but notes that this 
is only partly correct insofar as the test treats all retail space within a 
particular catchment equally.  Therefore, in the context of, for example, 
Port Talbot, the out of centre Morrisons and Lidl stores have as much (or 
as little) protection as the town centre Tesco and Iceland stores.  The test 
seeks to protect all floorspace /stores by ensuring that all space achieved, 
on a collective basis, reflects its average benchmark turnover – i.e. there 
is sufficient money to go around and only ‘surplus’ expenditure is available 
to support new floorspace).  This is the standard method for assessing 
quantitative capacity which has been used by retail planners in Wales and 
England for many years.   
 
In this respect, the need test remains part of both local planning policy in 
Neath Port Talbot and in Planning Policy Wales (Edition 9, November 
2016), and Section 38(6) requires applications to be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. As a consequence, the need test is afforded equal 
status to the other test referred to in Policy R3. 
 
The Council’s consultant remains of the opinion that in the context of Port 
Talbot, the 2012 Study indicated that the amount of expenditure in 
existing stores plus commitments was similar to the average turnover of 
these stores and commitments i.e. there is insufficient quantitative need to 
accommodate the proposed store. Therefore, with the lack of compliance 
with this particular test it is necessary to consider the weight which should 
be afforded to qualitative need.  
 
TAN4 notes that qualitative need is harder to justify and proposals based 
on this approach should be closely scrutinised to ensure that their 
development does not have unintended consequences and detrimental 
impact on existing retail activity within retail and commercial centres. The 
overall objective of applying the qualitative need approach would be to 
achieve an appropriate distribution and range of sites for retail stores 
which meets the needs of all communities, particularly of those in rural or 
deprived areas where existing provision is inadequate. 
 

Page 15



In respect of qualitative factors of need, the Council’s evidence base 
document which informed the LDP does not highlight a particular 
qualitative deficiency in convenience goods floor space in the Port Talbot 
area, noting that “a range of main and top-up food shopping facilities are 
available in both town centre and out of centre locations and there is 
reasonable choice for both local residents and visitors to the town. We 
consider that the balance of main and top-up food shopping facilities is an 
important aspect of provision in Port Talbot, with the town centre Tesco 
store making an important contribution to choice and competition in the 
central area.” 
 
The appellants argue that Iceland’s ‘Food Warehouse’ format can be 
regarded as meeting a specific qualitative need on the basis that it is a 
comparatively new retail format which will provide a new and improved 
retail offer in the local area.  The Council’s consultants note that the 
principle of increasing choice and competition in relation to retail provision 
in a particular area should be welcomed as it can potentially benefit local 
consumers. Nevertheless, while they acknowledge the positive qualitative 
benefit of the proposal in so far as it would add to choice and competition 
in the local area, they also confirm that national policy places less weight 
on qualitative need when compared with quantitative need.  
 
As noted earlier, PPW advises that it is for the local planning authority to 
determine and justify the weight to be given to any qualitative 
assessment.  In this regard, notwithstanding that the qualitative need 
benefits may be limited, it is acknowledged that the proposal would offer a 
different retail format within the area which will deliver a qualitative 
improvement in the overall range and choice of convenience facilities and 
will complement the existing retail stores currently operating in close 
proximity to the site and the wider area, offering benefit to local residents 
at an accessible location.  Accordingly, while this in itself may not be 
sufficient to ensure the development fully accords with the requirement to 
demonstrate a ‘need’ under criterion 1, it should nevertheless  form part of 
the overall planning balance in considering ‘other material considerations’ 
having regard to any wider benefits that may outweigh the lack of retail 
expenditure capacity. 
 
Sequential Test (Policy R3 Criterion 2) 
 
The sequential approach supports the principle that retail and commercial 
centres are in the most readily accessible location, and promotes 
combined trips for shopping, business, leisure and services. The approach 
reinforces the vibrancy, viability and attractiveness of retail and 

Page 16



commercial centres.  Adopting a sequential approach requires the 
application of a test whereby first preference should be for a site allocation 
or development proposal located in a retail and commercial centre defined 
in the development plan hierarchy of centres. 
 
The application site falls in an ‘out of centre’ location, albeit within 
settlement limits, and the applicants Retail Assessment acknowledges as 
required by PPW9, TAN4 and Policy R3 of the LDP that out of centre retail 
proposals need to demonstrate that there are no suitable, available and 
viable sequentially preferable sites which can accommodate the proposed 
development. Section 7 of TAN 4 further explains the sequence of 
preferred locations and notes that:  
 
“Where out of centre sites are concerned preference should be given to 
brownfield sites which are or will be served by a choice of a means of 
transport and are close to an established retail and commercial centre”. 
 
Following discussion with Officers, a number of alternative sites were 
considered as part of the assessment, including Glanafan School, Royal 
Buildings and Port Talbot Police Station all of which were discounted due 
to their size even allowing for a reasonable degree of flexibility. The 
applicant also considered the potential suitability and availability of sites 
and premises in and around local and district centres in the catchment of 
the proposal.  
 
The only site identified to be large enough to accommodate the proposal 
was Burrows Yard (which has a previous retail consent, but is currently 
the subject of ongoing work in respect of contamination etc.). 
Nevertheless, whilst on balance that site has a slight sequential 
advantage over the application site as it is closer to Port Talbot town 
centre and is served by a choice of means of transport it is acknowledged 
that this is small – with the application site also having good transport 
connections and benefitting from co-location with other out of centre 
stores – such that it would not warrant a refusal of the application on 
grounds that it would fail the sequential test. 
 
Impact / vitality and viability of existing retail centres (Policy R3 Criterion 
2) 
 
Criterion 3 of Policy R3 seeks to ensure that the vitality and viability of 
existing retail centres will not be undermined taking into account the 
cumulative effects of other approved retail developments, recently 
completed developments and plan commitments.  Vibrancy is reflected in 

Page 17



how busy and diverse a retail and commercial centre is at different times 
and in different parts, and in the attractiveness of the facilities and 
character which draw in trade. Viability, on the other hand, refers to the 
ability of the centre to attract and retain investment, not only to maintain 
the fabric, but also to allow for improvement and adaptation to changing 
needs. 
 
With respect to the impact of the proposal on Port Talbot Town Centre, 
the Council’s consultant advises that a significant part of the applicant’s 
assessment of the impact of the proposal on the vitality and viability of 
existing retail centres relies on an assessment of the financial effects of 
the proposed floor space. The base of this assessment would normally be 
the contents of the 2013 retail study although the applicant has dismissed 
the robustness of the household survey of local shopping patterns and 
made a number of manual adjustments to the turnover of the stores and 
centres across the Port Talbot area.  
 
Whilst he was in general agreement with the applicant’s broad pattern of 
trade diversion, the Authority’s retail consultant initially raised two 
concerns regarding the level of trade diversion/proportional impact on the 
town centre Iceland Store and the future of that store and the most 
appropriate way of assessing the scale of financial impact upon the health 
of existing centres. Indeed, the Council’s advisor emphasises their view 
that the Iceland store makes an important contribution to the centre and 
its loss would have a material adverse impact upon the health of the 
centre. 
 
Although impact is not specifically related to ‘Iceland’ but the retail 
floorspace, it is nevertheless the case that the potential for the 
development to result in closure of the existing town centre Iceland store 
would have potentially significant and harmful impacts on the town centre.  
The applicant has, however, sought to emphasise that it has never been 
their intention to close the town centre store and that Port Talbot can 
support two stores each offering different formats as has been 
demonstrated in other parts of the country. They have further emphasised 
that even where the new format stores have been opened, no existing 
centre stores have closed.   
 
Nevertheless, and as a consequence of concerns over the short term 
remaining on their town centre store’s lease, Officers have engaged with 
the applicants who have since confirmed that discussions have taken 
place with the owners of the existing store and agreement has been 
reached to extend the existing lease to July 2023. Therefore, the 

Page 18



immediate future of the town centre store can be secured, and it is 
considered that the proposed food warehouse will complement rather than 
replace the existing town centre store.  
 
Notwithstanding the lease, however, it is considered necessary (and as 
supported by the council’s consultant) to secure the retention of the 
existing town centre store through a s106 legal agreement with the 
applicant.  This is because lease agreements are not cast in stone from a 
planning perspective, and therefore a s106 agreement provides a greater 
degree of control for the Local Planning Authority, which can be given 
appropriate weight in reaching a positive recommendation on this 
application.  The proposed s106 would, as agreed with the developer, 
only seek to tie Iceland into a period concurrent with their lease extension 
(up to June 2023) which, given the intention to commence development 
shortly after consent is granted (if forthcoming), would equate to a period 
of approximately 5 years from opening. 
 
The applicant has also confirmed that the previously estimated trade 
diversion from the town centre represents an over estimate as it was 
assumed that the new store would trade at the then Iceland ‘benchmark’ 
turnover of £6.3 million. This contrasts very sharply with Iceland’s expert 
forecast of £4.6 million (2010 prices) for the new store’s turnover. The 
commitment to extend the existing town centre lease will result in a 
reduction in trade diversion from the town centre than previously 
estimated within the submitted Retail Assessment.  
 
Notwithstanding the above, whilst it is accepted that there could be an 
impact on Port Talbot Town Centre, it is concluded that the scale of the 
impact would not be to such a degree to unacceptably undermine the 
vitality and viability of the town centre to warrant a refusal of the 
application on such grounds. 
 
In addition, consideration has been given to the thrust of National Policy in 
TAN23 in respect of economic development, and in this regard paragraph 
1.2.7 outlines that a sequential test should be used when identifying land 
for economic uses, or when determining planning applications.  
Judgement should be applied to the economic use and its applicability to 
the particular location.  First preferences should be given to sites within 
settlement limits, second preference to edge of settlement sites, and third 
preference should consider land in the open countryside.   
 
TAN 23 further advises that where a planning authority is considering a 
planning application … it should ask three questions in order to help 

Page 19



clarity and balance the economic, social and environmental issues.  These 
are considered in turn below: 
 
Alternatives: if the land is not made available (the site is not allocated, or 
the application is refused), is it likely that the demand could be met on a 
site where development would cause less harm, and if so where? This 
test follows from the principle in PPW, that the planning system should 
steer development to the most sustainable locations. 
 
Evidence of seeking alternative sites has been discussed earlier in this 
report, these having been subject of discussions with Officers.  In the 
Council’s attempts to steer economic development to the most appropriate 
and sustainable locations, it is considered that the site is located within 
settlement and in an accessible location well served by footways and 
transport infrastructure. In addition to the aforementioned, it should be 
noted that this site has had the benefit of planning permission for a retail 
development in the past. Whilst it is acknowledged that the consent 
related to the sale of comparison goods and has since expired, it 
demonstrates that the site has in the past been considered to be a 
sustainable retail location.  
 
Jobs accommodated: how many direct jobs will be based at the site? 
 
This test provides an approximate measure of a development’s 
contribution to the wider economy, and in this regard it is noted that this 
proposals seeks to expand upon a national retailer’s offering within Port 
Talbot, in a new retail format which would offer wider economic benefits in 
terms of employment / job creation, with a mix of 25 part and full-time 
permanent jobs generated.  The applicant advises that these will be 
recruited locally and offer a range of opportunities including retail 
assistants, deputy manager and store manager. 
 
Special merit: would the development make any special contribution to 
policy objectives? For example, a major employment site may be a key 
element of a wider spatial strategy which aligns jobs, development and 
infrastructure. 
 
With regard to special merit, the proposal would make use of vacant and 
underused land, along with providing an improved retail choice.  While this 
in itself would not comprise ‘special merit’, the contribution to wider 
economic objectives referred to above is noted. 
 

Page 20



Having regard to the above, subject to the provision of the required legal 
agreement to retain the town centre Iceland store in its existing 
format/size, it is considered that proposed development, with its wider 
economic benefits, would not have a significant detrimental impact upon 
Port Talbot Town Centre and would comply with test 3 within Policy R3 of 
the Local Development Plan and Planning Policy Wales 9.  
 
On this basis and subject to the provision of the required legal agreement 
to retain the town centre Iceland store in its existing format/size, this would 
ensure that the development would not have a significant detrimental 
impact upon Port Talbot Town Centre and would comply with test 3 within 
Policy R3 of the Local Development Plan and Planning Policy Wales 9.  
 
Impact on Retail Hierarchy / Regeneration Schemes (Policy R3 Criterion 
4) 
 
Criterion 4 of Policy R3 states that the proposal should not undermine the 
Council’s retail hierarchy or any regeneration schemes that the Council 
has formally approved.  For the reasons given above in terms of impact, 
and having regard to TAN 23 also, it is considered that there would be no 
unacceptable effects such that it would comply with this criterion of Policy 
R3. 
 
Conclusion on Principle of Development 
 
As identified above, the proposal broadly complies with the objectives of 
Policy R3 of the Local Development Plan, but strictly speaking does not 
fully meet it because it does not meet the overall requirement of criterion 1 
that there must be a demonstrated need for the development (quantitative 
need being insufficient, and qualitative need being marginal).   
 
Within this context, it is considered appropriate to consider other material 
considerations and, in this instance, Officers note the national guidance in 
respect of economic development contained in TAN23, and that this 
proposal would introduce a major retailer into the area which would create 
additional local employment opportunities, broadening the economic base 
in Port Talbot.  While this in itself would not ‘tip the balance’, when 
considered as a whole particular regard should be given to the 
conclusions that, with the controls in place to secure the future of the 
existing town centre Iceland store until at least 2023, the impact on the 
town centre and other centres in the retail hierarchy would be limited.  
Moreover, the degree of impact would most likely be felt predominantly by 

Page 21



the nearby retail operators at Baglan, such that this is not considered to 
be critical to the outcome of this application. 
 
Accordingly, it is concluded that while the proposal would fail to benefit 
from sufficient quantitative need, and qualitative benefits would – while of 
note – be limited, the additional economic benefits of the proposal, having 
regard to limited evidenced impact on the retail centres/ hierarchy and the 
otherwise broad compliance with Policy R3, are such that there are no 
objections to the principle of this retail development.  
 
Visual Amenity: 
 
The building utilises a contemporary design and materials including 
double glazed powder coated aluminium (Dark Grey RAL 7015) windows 
to the front (north-west) elevation. The remaining elevations would be 
finished in flat white metal cladding panels with aluminium trims on both 
the north east and north west elevations. 
 
The design and use of colours and materials will ensure that the building 
is in keeping with the local area which, consists predominantly of modern 
large retail and industrial units.  
 
Soft landscaping is indicated on the plans, and a condition requiring full 
details is considered necessary to ensure the building and car parking will 
reflect the landscaped characteristics of the remainder of the locality. It will 
also be encouraged for the parking area itself to incorporate some minor 
planting to break up the parking area. 
 
No lighting scheme has been included, and again this is considered 
necessary to be conditioned in the interest of visual and residential 
amenity. 
 
In terms of visual impact it is therefore considered that the building is 
appropriate and will have a positive impact upon the character and 
appearance of the area and in accordance with LDP Policy BE 1.     
 
Residential Amenity: 
 
Whilst the application site is situated within a predominantly industrial and 
commercial area, the Copper Penny Public House situated to the west 
does have residential accommodation at first floor. This property has a 
separation distance of approximately 70 metres from the proposed 
delivery area.  

Page 22



 
Policy BE 1 of the LDP is related to design, and criterion (4) stipulates that 
any development should not have a significant adverse impact upon the 
amenity of occupiers of adjacent land or the community.  
 
Any development of this scale has the potential to result in impacts in 
terms of noise upon residential amenity and the Environmental Health 
Officer (Noise)  initially raised concerns regarding unrestricted delivery 
times and the proposed siting of plant behind metal palisade fencing 
rather than a more substantial barrier resulting in the potential for noise 
disturbance at night. 
 
As a consequence the applicant was requested to submit a Noise Impact 
Assessment which has been assessed by the aforementioned Officer who 
is now satisfied that the development can be undertaken without causing 
significant noise disturbance to the residential premises at the Copper 
Penny public house, subject to the provision and retention of a 3 metre 
high timber acoustic fence around the rear boundary of the proposed 
service yard in order  to mitigate delivery noise and in the interest of 
protecting residential amenity. 
 
With respect to opening times, the applicant has requested that opening 
times are 08.00 – 20.00 Monday – Saturday and 10.00 -16.00 on Sunday 
and Bank Holidays.  The potential impacts of low level noise would not 
result in a significant loss of residential amenity to the extent that it would 
warrant refusal of the application on such grounds. 
 
In terms of potential construction noise impacts, given the relationship with 
nearby residential properties it is recommended that a Construction 
Method Statement should be required by condition. 
 
Parking and Access Requirements and Impact on Highway Safety 
 
Policy TR2 of the LDP seeks to ensure that development proposals: - do 
not compromise the safe, effective and efficient use of the highway 
network or have an adverse impact on highway safety or create 
unacceptable levels of traffic generation; include appropriate levels of 
parking, cycling facilities and safe access/ manoeuvring; accessibility and 
are accompanied by TAs where likely to create significant traffic 
generation.  
 
 

Page 23



The proposed development provides a retail unit, which will both introduce 
additional traffic into the area, and result in an increased demand on car 
parking requirements for this site. The applicant has provided a Transport 
Assessment to support the planning application, which provides detailed 
trip generation information and evidence to support the car parking levels 
proposed. The plans also identify 83 no parking spaces, comprising 76 
standard spaces, 5 accessible and 2 parent and child.  
 
The Head of Engineering and Transport (Highways) has assessed the 
development and the detailed Transport Assessment and has raised no 
objection to the development, subject to a number of conditions. These 
conditions relate to means of access, surfacing and lighting proposals. 
 
A Construction Method Statement will also need to be submitted prior to 
any works commencing on site.  
 
Provision and retention of covered cycle parking (identified on the plans) 
will also be conditioned.  
 
It is therefore concluded that, subject to the above conditions, the 
development will not lead to any unacceptable impacts on highway and 
pedestrian safety, and would accord with Policy TR2 of the Local 
Development Plan.  
 
Contaminated Land 
 
The site has been identified as potentially contaminated land, however a 
Geotechnical and Geo Environmental Report was submitted in support of 
the application, which has been assessed by the Contaminated Land 
Officer (Environmental Health). 
 
Environmental Health are satisfied with the recommendations of the 
submitted Report that a Phase II Intrusive Geo-Environmental Ground 
Investigation is required in order to assess the potential risks to human 
health from the made ground including risk posed by ground gas, and has 
responded with no objections to this approach but have requested that the 
standard conditions be imposed with regard to site investigation and 
remediation. Natural Resources Wales have responded with no objections 
with respect to controlled waters contamination and have requested 
standard conditions be imposed in case of unexpected contamination. As 
such, it is considered that the proposed development would be acceptable 
in terms of pollution. 
 

Page 24



Flooding 
 
In respect of flooding issues, the proposed development lies within Zone 
C1 as defined by the development advice map referred to under TAN 15  
Development and Flood Risk (July 2004). NRW advises that while their 
flood map information confirms the site is at risk of flooding, their latest 
hydraulic model shows the site to be flood free in the defended scenario in 
both the 1%+CC and 0.1% fluvial flood. 
 
Accordingly, whilst the application has been accompanied by a detailed 
Flood Consequences Assessment (FCA) NRW have confirmed that the 
submission of such in this instance is not required such that there are no 
objections to the development of the site on flooding grounds.  
 
Drainage: 
 
The Head of Engineering and Transport (Drainage Section) has assessed 
the submitted proposal, and offers no objection to the overall proposal.  
 
Ecology: 
 
As the Biodiversity Unit and Natural Resources Wales have both 
assessed the proposal and offer no objections to the proposal subject to 
the imposition of conditions requiring the submission of a landscaping 
scheme and soil stripping to protect reptiles. It is therefore considered that 
the proposal would be acceptable in terms of protected species and 
ecology in this instance. 
 
Renewable Energy:  
 
Policy RE2 requires the submission of an ‘Energy Assessment’ for any 
proposal where developments result in new floor space of 1,000 square 
metres or more. 
 
Schemes that are shown by the assessment to be viable will be required 
to be implemented as part of the development.  In order to meet the 
requirements of Policy RE2, the approved SPG sets out the matters 
required for an Energy Assessment. 
 
The current application has not been accompanied by such an Energy 
Assessment, and as such condition requiring such an assessment prior to 
work commencing on the building, and that renewable energy (most likely 
solar/PV panels) will be incorporated into the building to meet some of the 

Page 25



energy needs for the development will be imposed. This is considered to 
satisfactorily meet the requirements of Policy RE2.  
 
Waste: 
 
Policy W3 – Waste Management in Development – requires proposals for 
new build development to demonstrate that provision is made for design, 
layout, storage and management of the waste generated by the 
development both during the construction phase and occupation. The 
applicant has confirmed that the proposal would not generate in excess of 
1,000 tonnes of waste per annum and as such there is no requirement for 
a Waste Management Plan.  
 
Open Space Provision: 
 
Policy OS1 (Open Space Provision) states that in the case of employment 
or commercial development proposals of over 1,000 sq.m, provision will 
be sought for associated amenity space.  The explanatory text 
emphasises (at 5.1.57) that this is to allow employees to access outdoor 
amenity space close to the workplace in the interests of health and well-
being.  
 
The submitted scheme provides for an amenity area of 83 sq. m. although 
no obvious means of accessing this area other than through the car park / 
cycle area.  The provision of the area, however, is considered to meet the 
Policy requirements, albeit the provision and retention of this area 
(including provision of appropriate seating, access and any necessary 
privacy screening) will need to be conditioned. 
 
Other Matters 
 
As identified earlier in this report comments have been received from the 
Local Ward Member. In response to the issues raised which have not 
been addressed elsewhere in this report, the following comments are 
made:  
 

• The issue of community benefit is not a material planning 
consideration in the determination of this application, however as far 
as we are aware no such benefit has been offered; 
 

• In terms of S106 negotiations, the applicant has been advised that 
any positive recommendation would be subject to an agreement to 
secure the future of the town centre Iceland Store.  

Page 26



CONCLUSION 
 
The decision to recommend planning permission has been taken in 
accordance with Section 38 of The Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004, which requires that in determining a planning application the 
determination must be in accordance with the Development Plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan 
comprises the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (2011-2016) 
adopted January 2016.  
 
Having regard to the findings of the independent retail impact report, it is 
considered that while the proposal would fail to benefit from sufficient 
quantitative need, and qualitative benefits would – while of note – be 
limited, the additional economic benefits of the proposal, having regard to 
limited evidenced impact on the retail centres/ hierarchy and the otherwise 
broad compliance with Policy R3, are such that the proposed 
development, subject to the required legal agreement, would not 
unacceptably undermine the vitality and viability of Port Talbot Town 
Centre or other designated retail centres.  It is also concluded that the 
proposed new retail unit would not have an unacceptable detrimental 
impact upon visual and residential amenity or upon the character or 
appearance of the street scene, and there would be no adverse impact 
upon highway and pedestrian safety. Accordingly, the proposed 
development is acceptable having regard to Policies R3, BE1, SC1, OS1, 
EN8 and TR2 of the adopted Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan, 
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 9), TAN 4- Retail and Commercial 
Development (2016) and TAN 23 – Economic Development. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approval subject to a Section 106 Legal Agreement with the following 
Heads of Terms: 
 

1. That the applicant company commit to the Port Talbot Town Centre 
Iceland store remaining trading in the same format and size until 1st 
June 2023.   

 
And to the following conditions: 
 

Page 27



CONDITIONS 
 
Time Limit Conditions 

(1)The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of five years from the date of this permission. 

Reason 

To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 

Approved Plans 

(2) The development hereby approved relates to the following plans and 
documents; 

Ecology Assessment – BSG Ecology  
Drainage details- SGI Shepherd Gilmour Consulting Engineers 
Flood Consequences Assessment and Drainage Statement - SGI 
Shepherd Gilmour Consulting Engineers 
Phase 1 Geo –Environmental Site Assessment- May 2017 
Retail Assessment –dpp Planning May 2017 
Retail Assessment Addendum – July 2017 
Design and Access Statement – March 2017 
Noise Impact Assessment (Revision 2) – Hoare Lea  14/7/17 
Location Plan – Drawing 10170 PL01 A 
Topography Survey – Drawing 10170 PL02 
Proposed Site Plan – Drawing 10170  PL03 Rev J 
Floor and Roof Plans – Drawing 10170 PL05 Rev D  
Elevations and Section – Drawing 10170 PL06 Rev F  
Site Co ordinates – Drawing 10170 PL07  
Proposed Motorcycle Parking – Drawing 10170 PL08 
Reason: In the interests of clarity 

Page 28



Pre-Commencement Conditions 

(3) Prior to the commencement of works on site a  Construction Method 
Statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The statement shall provide for: 

a. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors 
b. loading and unloading of plant and materials 
c. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development 
d. the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including 

decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, where 
appropriate 

e. wheel washing facilities 
f. measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction 
g. a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition 

and construction works 
h. scheme for the erection of temporary/semi temporary signage 

warning drivers of the presence of children and speed restrictions. 
i. The frequency and size of vehicles used to transport the waste 

material arising from the demolition works 
j  The frequency and size of vehicles used to transport the waste 

material arising from the demolition works. 

The approved statement shall be adhered to throughout the demolition 
period.  

Reason 

In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety 

(4) Prior to the commencement of work on site a scheme to assess the 
nature and extent of any contamination on the site, and confirmation of 
whether or not it originates on the site shall be submitted to and agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority. The investigation and risk 
assessment must be undertaken by competent persons in accordance 
with the following document:- Land Contamination: A Guide for 
Developers (WLGA, WAG & EAW, July 2006) and shall be submitted as a 
written report which shall include:  

(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination;  
(ii)  an assessment of the potential risks to:  

Page 29



• human health,  
• ground waters and surface waters  
• adjoining land,  
• property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes,  
• ecological systems,  
• archaeological sites and ancient monuments;  
(iii) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred 
remedial option(s). 
Reason 

To ensure that information provided for the assessment of the risks from 
land contamination to the future users of the land, neighbouring land, 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems is sufficient to enable a 
proper assessment. 

(5)  Prior to the commencement of work on site a remediation scheme to 
bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing any 
unacceptable risks to human health, buildings, other property and the 
natural and historical environment shall be prepared and submitted to and 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall 
include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives, 
remediation criteria and site management procedures. The measures 
proposed within the remediation scheme shall be implemented in 
accordance with an agreed programme of works.  

Reason  

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the 
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors. 

Action Conditions 

(6) Prior to their use in the development hereby permitted samples of the 
materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the 
development hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority.  Development shall be carried out 
in accordance with the approved details.   

Page 30



Reason 

In the interest of the visual amenity of the area. 

(7) Prior to beneficial use of the proposed development commencing, a 
verification report which demonstrates the effectiveness of the agreed 
remediation works carried out in accordance with condition 4 shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  

Reason 

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the 
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors. 

(8)  In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out 
the approved development that was not previously identified, work on site 
shall cease immediately and shall be reported in writing to the Local 
Planning Authority. A Desk Study, Site Investigation, Risk Assessment 
and where necessary a Remediation Strategy must be undertaken in 
accordance with the following document:- Land Contamination: A Guide 
for Developers (WLGA, WAG & EAW, July 2006). This document shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. Prior 
to occupation of the development, a verification report which 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the agreed remediation, shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  

Reason 

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the 
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other off site receptors. 

(9) Prior to beneficial use, the car parking  and associated access as  
detailed on Drawing 10170 PL03 Rev J shall be hard surfaced, marked 
out, drained and retained as such thereafter.  

Reason  

In the interest of highway and pedestrian safety. 

Page 31



(10) Prior to any vehicular access being constructed onto Aberavon Road 
a scheme detailing the proposed access shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority this scheme shall 
include:  

i     Construction details 
ii        Tactile crossing points  
iii          Surface water drainage  

These details as approved shall be implemented prior to beneficial use 
and retained as such thereafter. 

Reason  

In the interest of highway and pedestrian safety. 

(11) Prior to first beneficial use the means of enclosure shown on the 
proposed site plan Drawing No 10170 PL03 Rev J shall be erected and 
maintained as such thereafter.  

Reason  

In the interest of visual and residential amenity. 

(12) Prior to development commencing on the construction of the retail 
store/building hereby approved, an Energy Assessment to determine the 
feasibility of incorporating renewable and low carbon energy in the 
proposed development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. If the scheme, as approved, determines that 
renewable or low carbon energy measures are viable, these shall be fully 
implemented on site prior to first use of the development and retained as 
such thereafter. 

Reason 

In the interest of sustainability and to comply with the requirements of 
Policy RE2 of the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan. 

(13) The means of enclosure/ acoustic screening  detailed on Drawing No 
10170-PL03 shall be erected prior to the first beneficial use of the building 
and retained as such thereafter.  

Reason 

In the interest of visual and residential amenity. 

Page 32



(14) Prior to commencement of construction of the building details of both 
hard and soft landscape works, which shall contain native species suitable 
to allow birds to forage and nest, shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority. The landscaping works shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details during the first 
planting season immediately following completion of the development and 
maintained as such thereafter. 

Reason 

In the interest of visual amenity. 

(15) Prior to first beneficial use of the development hereby permitted an 
operational lighting scheme shall have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority. The submitted scheme shall include 
the following details: locations and specifications of all external lighting to 
the site and building; the identification of areas to be illuminated and any 
measures to prevent light spilling on to areas outside the approved site; 
and hours of external lighting. The scheme shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details prior to first beneficial use of the 
development here permitted and thereafter retained as approved. 

Reason 

To ensure the lighting scheme does not have any detrimental effects upon 
amenity. 

(16) Prior to first beneficial use of the development hereby permitted the 
covered  cycle parking identified on  Drawing No 10170 PL03 J shall be 
provided and retained as such thereafter. 

Reason 

To ensure the promotion of sustainable means of transport. 

(17) Prior to the first beneficial use of the building the amenity area as 
shown on Drawing No 10170 PL03 J shall be provided together with any 
required seating and privacy screening and retained as such thereafter.  

Reason  

To ensure provision of outdoor amenity space for employees in 
accordance with Policy OS1 of the Local Development Plan, 

 

Page 33



(18) Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order, 1995 (or any order revoking and 
re-enacting that Order with or without modification), no  means of 
enclosure including barrier or bollards  shall be erected on  the entrance 
into the service area  unless a scheme including full details of the size, 
position , control mechanism together with a management plan for 
deliveries  has been first submitted  to and  approved in writing by the 
local planning authority prior to its installation. Operation of the service 
yard shall thereafter be in full accordance with any agreed enclosure / 
management plan.  

Reason 

In the interests of highway safety to ensure that the access to the service 
area is kept free from obstruction. 

Regulatory Conditions 

(19) The retail unit hereby approved shall remain as one unit and not be 
sub-divided into smaller retail units. 

Reason 

To ensure the development does not have an adverse effect on the retail 
function of Port Talbot Town Centre. 

(20) The store shall not be open to the public outside the following times 
08.00 hours to 20.00 hours Monday to Saturday and 10.00 hours to 16.00 
hours on Sundays and Bank Holidays.  

Reason 

In the interest of amenity. 

(21) There shall be no storage of goods and merchandise, packing cases, 
rubbish, other waste matter or any other item whatsoever except in the  
screened area identified on Drawing 10170  - PL03 J  

Reason 

In the interest of visual amenity. 

Page 34



(22) The total net sales shall not exceed 1051 sq metres of which  no 
greater than 10% shall be used for the sale of comparison goods. 

Reason 

To ensure the development does not have an adverse effect on the retail 
function of Port Talbot Town Centre. 

(23) Any facilities for the storage of oils, fuels or chemicals shall be sited 
on impervious bases and surrounded by impervious bund walls.  The 
volume of the bunded compound should be at least equivalent to the 
capacity of the tank plus 10%.  If there is multiple tankage, the compound 
should be at least equivalent to the capacity of the largest tank, or the 
combined capacity of interconnected tanks, plus 10%.  All filling points, 
vents , gauges and sight glasses must be located within the bund.  The 
drainage system of the bund shall be sealed with no discharge to any 
watercourse, land or underground strata.  Associated pipework should be 
located above ground and protected from accidental damage.  All filling 
points and tank overflow pipe outlets should be detailed to discharge 
downwards into the bund. 

Reason 

To prevent pollution of the water environment in the interest of amenity. 

(24) Where any grassland and scrub is to be removed vegetation is to be 
cut to 100mm in height one week prior to soil stripping. The vegetation 
shall be cut with hand held machinery to reduce the risk of crushing. A 
further cut to approximately 50mm shall take place after a period of not 
less than 48 hours. After 48 hours an ecologist shall hand search 
remaining habitat for the presence of reptiles or amphibians prior to topsoil 
stripping and root removal. 

Reason 

In the interests of ecology. 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



SECTION B – MATTERS FOR INFORMATION 
 
DELEGATED APPLICATIONS  
DETERMINED BETWEEN  24TH OCTOBER AND  
13TH NOVEMBER 2017 
 

1     App No.  P2008/1180 Type Full Plans  
Proposal Retention of Engineering works for storm water 
attenuation and the construction of surface water outfall 
Location  Land At Rear Of, Ty Twyn Teg,  Neath  
Decision      Approval with no Conditions 
Ward           Bryncoch South 

 

2     App No.  P2011/0466 Type Outline  
Proposal Detached Dwelling (outline) 
Location  Land at, Varteg Row,  Bryn, Port Talbot SA13 2RF 
Decision      Refusal 
Ward           Bryn & Cwmavon 

 

3     App No.  P2012/0985 Type Discharge of Cond.
  

Proposal Details to be agreed in association with condition 12 
(Drainage) of planning permission P2011/0688 granted on 
05/09/2011 
Location  Land at, TATA Steelworks,  Margam, Port Talbot  
Decision      Approval with no Conditions 
Ward           Margam 

 

4     App No.  P2016/1102 Type Discharge of Cond.
  

Proposal Discharge of condition 12 of planning permission 
reference P2013/0720 - Revised scheme for the restoration of the 
Selar Surface Mine site following the permanent cessation of 
coaling operations. 
Location  Selar Surface Mine, Near Glynneath,  Rhigos, 
Aberdare CF44 9UR 
Decision      Approved subject to s.106 
Ward           Glynneath 

 

 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 5



5     App No.  P2017/0713 Type Full Plans  
Proposal Construction of one detached dwelling (revised scheme 
amended 26/9/2017) 
Location  Land Adjoining, 134 Brookfield,  Neath Abbey, Neath 
SA10 7EF 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Bryncoch South 

 

6     App No.  P2017/0816 Type Householder  
Proposal Two storey rear and single storey side and rear 
extensions 
Location  54 Lon Hir,  Alltwen Pontardawe, Swansea SA8 3DE 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Alltwen 

 

7     App No.  P2017/0826 Type Full Plans  
Proposal Demolition of side annex and construction of a two 
storey, side extension to accommodate a new escape staircase 
and change of use of remaining building from a former Magistrate 
Court (Use class D1) to Office accommodation (Use Class B1), 
insertion of two ground floor windows and one first floor window, 
plus alteration of an internal door into an external window 
(Following demolition); replacement natural finish zinc roof with 
standing seams to rear plant room, together with extension of 
existing access, turning and car parking and landscape areas. 
Location  Former Magistrates Court, Cramic Way,  Port Talbot 
SA13 1RU 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Margam 

 

8     App No.  P2017/0846 Type Householder  
Proposal Two storey rear extension and conservatory including 
the retention and competion of fencing above front and side wall. 
Location  82 Cilmaengwyn Road,  Cilmaengwyn, Pontardawe 
SA8 4QN 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Godre'rgraig 

 

9     App No.  P2017/0851 Type Householder  
Proposal Retention of front canopy to front elevation and level 
platform to front door. 
Location  2 School Road,  Tonna, Neath SA11 3EJ 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Tonna 

 

Page 38



10     App No.  P2017/0852 Type Full Plans  
Proposal New dwelling with detached garage 
Location  Plot 35, Forest Lodge Lane,  Cwmavon, Port Talbot 
SA13 2RX 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Bryn & Cwmavon 

 

11     App No.  P2017/0854 Type Discharge of Cond 
Proposal Discharge of Condition 5 (detailed design for the 
stabilisation works along the western wall), Condition 17 (details of 
the construction of the overflow spilway) and Condition 18 
(management and maintenance strategy for all the proposed and 
retained watercourses, the overspill channel, culverts and surface 
water management features) attached to planning permission 
P2016/0078 
Location  Former Margam Surface Mine, Fford Y Gyfraith,  Cefn 
Cribwr CF32 0BS 
Decision      Approval with no Conditions 
Ward           Margam 

 

12     App No.  P2017/0862 Type Discharge of Cond 
Proposal Details to be agreed in association with conditions 14 
(temporary construction lighting) and 18 (mini-bus drop off) of 
planning permission P2016/1022 granted on 01/02/17 
Location  Groes Primary And Dyffryn Upper Schools, Bertha 
Road,  Margam, Port Talbot SA13 2AW 
Decision      Approval with no Conditions 
Ward           Margam 

 

13     App No.  P2017/0877 Type Householder  
Proposal Change of Use of land into garden curtilage, and 
construction of 1.82 metre high boundary wall. 
Location  38 Village Gardens,  Aberavon, Port Talbot SA12 7LW 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Aberavon 

 

14     App No.  P2017/0879 Type Householder  
Proposal Two storey rear extension, alterations and increase in 
size of existing raised decking area and new steps plus demolition 
of part of existing outbuilding and making good the retained portion 
of the structure. 
Location  6 Coed Parc,  Cwmavon, Port Talbot SA12 9BN 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Bryn & Cwmavon 

 

Page 39



15     App No.  P2017/0881 Type Householder  
Proposal Retention of single storey rear extension 
Location  68 Llantwit Road,  Neath SA11 3LB 
Decision      Approval with no Conditions 
Ward           Neath North 

 

16     App No.  P2017/0886 Type Householder  
Proposal Detached Outhouse 
Location  94 Penshannel,  Neath Abbey, Neath SA10 6PP 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Dyffryn 

 

17     App No.  P2017/0888 Type Householder  
Proposal Replacement single storey rear extension. 
Location  6 Church Square,  Cwmavon, Port Talbot SA12 9AP 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Bryn & Cwmavon 

 

18     App No.  P2017/0890 Type Full Plans  
Proposal Conversion of first and second floors to provide 4no. 
self-contained flats plus inclusion of 4 roof lights to front elevation 
and raising of existing flat roof including windows to side elevations 
Location  13 Old Market Street,  Neath SA11 3NA 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Neath North 

 

19     App No.  P2017/0891 Type Discharge of Cond.
  

Proposal Details to be agreed in association with condition 22 
(Drainage Strategy) and condition 19 (Provision of artificial nesting 
sites for birds) of application P2017/0248 granted on 26 June 
2017. 
Location  Former Cwrt Sart Comprehensive School, Old Road,  
Briton Ferry, Neath SA11 2ET 
Decision      Approval with no Conditions 
Ward           Briton Ferry East 

 

20     App No.  P2017/0896 Type Full Plans  
Proposal Replacement of telecommunications pole and 
antennas, together with 2 no. small cabinets 
Location  Existing Streetworks Telecommunications Installation, 
Pen -Y- Heol,  Llandarcy, Neath SA10 6EJ 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Coedffranc West 

 

Page 40



21     App No.  P2017/0897 Type Full Plans  
Proposal Temporary change of use of land (till the 1st Feb 2018) 
to a HGV pre-check-in facility and bus drop off area, including 
gatehouse. 
Location  Amazon, Ffordd Amazon,  Crymlyn Burrows, Swansea 
SA1 8QX 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Coedffranc West 

 

22     App No.  P2017/0899 Type Section 37 Elec Act
  

Proposal Consultation under section 37 of the Electricity Act for 
the construction of an overhead 11kv power line 40 metres in 
length 
Location  Ynysymond Uchaf Farm, Lane From Glais Road 
Alltwen To Ynysymond Uchaf Farm,  Glais, Swansea SA7 9JE 
Decision      No Objections 
Ward           Alltwen 

 

23     App No.  P2017/0900 Type Vary Condition  
Proposal Variation of Conditions 3 & 4 of Planning Permission 
P2014/1034 (Approved on the 13th Feb 2015)  to extend the 
period for the submission of reserved matters. 
Location  Wern Ddu Bungalow, Tyllwyd Road,  Bryncoch, Neath 
SA10 7DX 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Bryncoch North 

 

24     App No.  P2017/0904 Type Householder  
Proposal Two storey side extension, single storey rear extension 
and front porch. 
Location  30 Llwyncelyn Road,  Tairgwaith, Ammanford SA18 
1UU 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Lower Brynamman 

 

25     App No.  P2017/0905 Type Householder  
Proposal Two storey side extension, and single storey rear 
extension 
Location  2 Pen Y Graig Road,  Alltwen Pontardawe, Swansea 
SA8 3BS 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Alltwen 

 

Page 41



26     App No.  P2017/0906 Type Householder  
Proposal Retention and completion of two storey rear extension 
Location  Pen Cae'r Lan Farm, Lane From Dulais Road To Pen 
Cae'r Lan Farm,  Seven Sisters, Neath SA10 9EP 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Seven Sisters 

 

27     App No.  P2017/0910 Type Full Plans  
Proposal Installation of external air conditioning condensers 
(Additional Details - Noise Report Received 1210/17) 
Location  Hope And Anchor, New Road,  Neath Abbey, Neath 
SA10 7NG 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Dyffryn 

 

28     App No.  P2017/0913 Type Householder  
Proposal Erection of garage/storage 
Location  Ty Gwennol, Main Road,  Cilfrew, Neath SA10 8NE 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Aberdulais 

 

29     App No.  P2017/0917 Type Discharge of Cond.
  

Proposal Details to be agreed in association with Condition 14 
(Bicycle Parking) and Condition 17 (temporary construction lights) 
of P2017/0248 granted on 26th June 2017. 
Location  Former Cwrt Sart Comprehensive School, Old Road,  
Briton Ferry, Neath SA11 2ET 
Decision      Approval with no Conditions 
Ward           Briton Ferry East 

 

30     App No.  P2017/0922 Type Householder  
Proposal First floor side extension 
Location  17 Rhiwlas,  Waunceirch, Neath SA10 7RB 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Bryncoch South 

 

31     App No.  P2017/0924 Type Vary Condition  
Proposal Variation of Condition 3 of Planning Permission 
P2014/0451 (One split level dwelling) to allow for the submission of 
reserved matters by the 15th October 2019. 
Location  Plot 2 (Opposite No. 101), Taillwyd Road,  Neath 
Abbey, Neath  
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Bryncoch South 

 

Page 42



32     App No.  P2017/0927 Type Full Plans  
Proposal 1No. refrigerated storage unit which will be placed on 
site between the 1st November to 31st January each year only. 
Location  21 Green Street,  Neath SA11 1DH 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Neath North 

 

33     App No.  P2017/0929 Type App under TPO  
Proposal Works to trees protected by Tree Preservation Order 
T88/A1 - Fell  trees T4, T6, T8, T9, G1, prune overhanging 
branches on tree T11 to provide a minimum clearance of 2.5 
metres to the dwelling, T12 prune overhanging branches on tree 
T11 to provide a minimum clearance of 3 metres to the dwelling 
and T13 crown raise canopy to 6 metres 
Location  9 Pearson Way,  Neath SA11 2EJ 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Neath East 

 

34     App No.  P2017/0931 Type Discharge of Cond 
Proposal Submission of details pursuant to conditions 3 
(Construction Method Statement), 4 (External Materials), 6 (Means 
of Enclosure) and 7 (Parking Spaces) of Planning Application 
P2016/0601 approved on 20th January 2017 
Location  Morfa Afan, Dalton Road,  Sandfields, Port Talbot 
SA12 6SL 
Decision      Approval with no Conditions 
Ward           Sandfields East 

 

35     App No.  P2017/0941 Type Householder  
Proposal Creation of raised platform to provide off street parking 
facilities together with associated engineering works. 
Location  48 Brynheulog Road,  Croeserw Cymmer, Port Talbot 
SA13 3RR 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Cymmer 

 

36     App No.  P2017/0944 Type Change of Use  
Proposal Change of use of one office room (Use Class B1) to 
chiropractic and medical aesthetics clinic (Use Class D1 / sui 
generis mixed use) 
Location  Shaw Trust Disability Action Centre, The Courtyard, 
D'arcy Business Park,  Llandarcy, Neath SA10 6EJ 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Coedffranc West 

 

Page 43



37     App No.  P2017/0951 Type Full Plans  
Proposal Retention of barn conversion and outbuildings 
Location  Swn y Nant Barn, Blaenant Farm,  Cilybebyll, 
Pontardawe SA8 3JH 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Rhos 

 

38     App No.  P2017/0952 Type Householder  
Proposal Single-Storey rear extension 
Location  57 Talbot Road,  Port Talbot SA13 1HU 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Port Talbot 

 

39     App No.  P2017/0953 Type Full Plans  
Proposal One detached dwelling 
Location  Plot 28, Cae Copor,  Cwmavon, Port Talbot SA12 9BX 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Bryn & Cwmavon 

 

40     App No.  P2017/0954 Type LawfulDev.Cert-
Prop.  

Proposal Lawful Development Certificate (Proposed) - Porch 
Location  2 Silver Close,  Sandfields, Port Talbot SA12 7SG 
Decision      Issue Lawful Dev.Cert. 
Ward           Sandfields West 

 

41     App No.  P2017/0959 Type Full Plans  
Proposal Improvements to Cadoxton Park, including the 
provision of new play equipment, new paths, biodiversity features 
and minor changes in topography 
Location  Cadoxton Park,  Bryn Catwg, Cadoxton SA8 3BG 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Cadoxton 

 

42     App No.  P2017/0967 Type LawfulDev.Cert-
Prop.  

Proposal Certificate of lawful development (proposed) single 
storey rear extension. 
Location  27 Western Avenue,  Sandfields, Port Talbot SA12 
7LS 
Decision      Issue Lawful Dev.Cert. 
Ward           Sandfields East 

 

Page 44



43     App No.  P2017/0968 Type Discharge of Cond.
  

Proposal Details to be agreed in association with condition 3 
(Construction Method Statement) and 4 (Materials) of Planning 
Application P2015/0890 granted on August 21st 2017 
Location  Premier Travel Inn The Bagle Brook, Pentwyn Baglan 
Road,  Baglan, Port Talbot SA12 8ES 
Decision      Approval with no Conditions 
Ward           Baglan 

 

44     App No.  P2017/0972 Type LawfulDev.Cert-
Prop.  

Proposal Certificate of lawful development (Proposed) single 
storey rear extension. 
Location  19 Western Avenue,  Sandfields, Port Talbot SA12 
7LS 
Decision      Issue Lawful Dev.Cert. 
Ward           Sandfields East 

 

45     App No.  P2017/0973 Type Non Material 
Amendment (S96A)  

Proposal Non-material amendment of application P2014/0328 to 
amend Condition 9 and 10 to allow an alteration to the method and 
timing in marking out the parking spaces, additional time to provide 
a vehicle cross over, and to alter the surface of the parking area to 
utilise permeable paving grids. 
Location  23 Church Road,  Seven Sisters, Neath SA10 9DU 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Seven Sisters 

 

46     App No.  P2017/0978 Type Householder  
Proposal Front canopy. 
Location  11 Golf Road,  Sandfields, Port Talbot SA12 6RH 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Sandfields East 

 

47     App No.  P2017/0982 Type Prior Notif.Eccl.  
Proposal Ecclesiastic Exemption Consultation: for the removal of 
6 pews from the back of the church. 
Location  Church Of St Mary The Virgin, Church Street,  Briton 
Ferry, Neath SA11 2SG 
Decision      No Objections 
Ward           Briton Ferry West 

 

Page 45



48     App No.  P2017/0983 Type LawfulDev.Cert-
Exist  

Proposal Single storey rear extension and two outbuildings - 
Certificate Of Lawful Development (Existing) 
Location  24 Seaward Avenue,  Sandfields, Port Talbot SA12 
7LT 
Decision      Approval with no Conditions 
Ward           Sandfields East 

 

49     App No.  P2017/0991 Type Non Material 
Amendment (S96A)  

Proposal Non-material amendment of application P2017/0079 to 
amend Conditions 2 and 3 in respect of the external materials 
Location  Plaza Cafe, 34 Orchard Street,  Neath SA11 1HA 
Decision      Approval with Conditions 
Ward           Neath North 

 

50     App No.  P2017/0994 Type Prior Notif.Demol. 
Proposal Prior Notification for the demolition of Bethania Chapel 
Location  Bethania Baptist Chapel, Salem Road,  Cwmavon, 
Port Talbot  
Decision      Prior Approval Required 
Ward           Bryn & Cwmavon 

 

51     App No.  P2017/1003 Type Non Material 
Amendment (S96A)  

Proposal Non- material amendment to Planning Application 
P2016/0657 to allow variation of wording of condition 2 (Plan 
substitution to account for fenestration changes on Block D  and 
increase in width of Block E) 
Location  Glanafan Comprehensive School, Station Road,  Port 
Talbot SA13 1LZ 
Decision      Approval with no Conditions 
Ward           Port Talbot 

 

52     App No.  P2017/1005 Type Discharge of Cond. 
Proposal Details pursuant to the discharge of Condition 6 (Piling 
Methodology) of Planning Permission P2017/0730 (Impact 
Building) 
Location  Swansea University Bay Campus, Fabian way,  
Crymlyn Burrows, SA1 8EN 
Decision      Approval with no Conditions 
Ward           Coedffranc West 

Page 46



 

53     App No.  P2017/1011 Type LawfulDev.Cert-
Prop.  

Proposal Certificate of Lawfulness (proposed) for a single storey 
rear extension 
Location  115 Brynmorgrug,  Alltwen, Pontardawe SA8 3DP 
Decision      Issue Lawful Dev.Cert. 
Ward           Alltwen 

 

54     App No.  P2017/1029 Type LawfulDev.Cert-
Prop.  

Proposal Certificate of Lawfulness (proposed) - Dormer 
extension to rear roof plane, Velux type roof light to front roof 
plane, stainless steel flue. 
Location  37 Ynys Yr Afon,  Clyne, Neath SA11 4BP 
Decision      Issue Lawful Dev.Cert. 
Ward           Resolven 

 

55     App No.  P2017/1034 Type LawfulDev.Cert-
Prop.  

Proposal Certificate of Lawfulness (proposed) single storey rear 
extension 
Location  15 Thorburn Close,  Neath SA11 1RH 
Decision      Issue Lawful Dev.Cert. 
Ward           Neath North 

 

 

 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



SECTION B – MATTERS FOR INFORMATION 

APPEALS RECEIVED 

 

a) Planning Appeals 
 
Appeal Ref: A2017/0012 Planning Ref: P2017/0843 
 
PINS Ref: APP/Y6930/X/17/3188398 
 
Applicant: Mr E John 
 
Proposal: Single storey front conservatory extension 

Certificate of Lawful Development Proposed 
 
Site Address: 121B Pen Y Cae Road, Port Talbot 
 
Start Date: 10th November 2017 
 
Appeal Method:  Written Representations 
 
 
Appeal Ref: A2017/0013 Planning Ref: P2017/0576 
 
PINS Ref: APP/Y6930/ A/17/3188919 
 
Applicant: Mr Opey Jones 
 
Proposal: Retention and completion of use of land for the 

siting of two caravans for a Gypsy family, 
associated amenity building, hardstanding and 
improvement of existing access. 

   
Site Address: Riverside Stables CF33 4HW 
 
Start Date: 9th November 2017 
 
Appeal Method:  Hearing (Joint Planning / Enforcement) 

Page 49

Agenda Item 6



 

b) Enforcement Appeals 
 
Appeal Ref: A2017/0014 Ref: E2017/0131  
 
PINS Ref: APP/Y6930/C17/3188952 
 
Applicant: Mr Opey Jones 
 
Alleged Breach:  Without planning permission, the material 

change of use of land for the siting of three 
caravans being utilised for residential purposes, 
along with the creation of a hardstanding on the 
land and other associated structures and 
enclosures. 

 
Site Address: Riverside Stables CF33 4HW 
 
Start Date: 9th November 2017 
 
Appeal Method:  Hearing (Joint Planning / Enforcement) 
 

Page 50


	Agenda
	2 To receive the Minutes of the previous meeting held on 31 October, 2017
	4 Application No: P2017/0516
	5 Delegated Applications Determined between 24 October and 13 November, 2017
	SECTION B – MATTERS FOR INFORMATION

	6 Appeals Received

